
 

 
County Hall, New Road, Oxford, OX1 1ND 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk  Fax: 01865 783195  Media Enquiries 01865 323870 
 

 
 
 
 
To: Members of the Cabinet 

 

Notice of a Meeting of the Cabinet 
 

Friday, 23 March 2012 at 10.00 am 
 

County Hall, Oxford, OX1 1ND 
 
 

 
Membership 

Councillors 
 

Keith R. Mitchell CBE - Leader of the Council 

David Robertson - Deputy Leader of the Council 

Arash Fatemian - Cabinet Member for Adult Services 

Louise Chapman - Cabinet Member for Children, Education & 
Families 

Jim Couchman - Cabinet Member for Finance & Property 

Lorraine Lindsay-Gale - Cabinet Member for Growth & Infrastructure 

Kieron Mallon - Cabinet Member for Police & Policy Co-ordination 

Mrs J. Heathcoat - Cabinet Member for Safer & Stronger 
Communities 

Melinda Tilley - Cabinet Member for Schools Improvement 

Rodney Rose - Cabinet Member for Transport 

 
The Agenda is attached.  Decisions taken at the meeting 
will become effective at the end of the working day on  

unless called in by that date for review by the appropriate Scrutiny Committee. 
Copies of this Notice, Agenda and supporting papers are circulated 

to all Members of the County Council. 
 

Date of next meeting: 17 April 2012 

 
Joanna Simons  
Chief Executive March 2012 
  
Contact Officer: Sue Whitehead 

Tel: (01865) 810262; E-Mail: sue.whitehead@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

Declarations of Interest 
 
This note briefly summarises the position on interests which you must declare at the meeting.   
Please refer to the Members’ Code of Conduct in Part 9.1 of the Constitution for a fuller 
description. 
 
The duty to declare … 
You must always declare any “personal interest” in a matter under consideration, i.e. where the 
matter affects (either positively or negatively): 
(i) any of the financial and other interests which you are required to notify for inclusion in the 

statutory Register of Members’ Interests; or 
(ii) your own well-being or financial position or that of any member of your family or any 

person with whom you have a close association more than it would affect other people in 
the County. 

 
Whose interests are included … 
“Member of your family” in (ii) above includes spouses and partners and other relatives’ spouses 
and partners, and extends to the employment and investment interests of relatives and friends 
and their involvement in other bodies of various descriptions.  For a full list of what “relative” 
covers, please see the Code of Conduct. 
 
When and what to declare … 
The best time to make any declaration is under the agenda item “Declarations of Interest”.  
Under the Code you must declare not later than at the start of the item concerned or (if different) 
as soon as the interest “becomes apparent”.    
In making a declaration you must state the nature of the interest. 
 
Taking part if you have an interest … 
Having made a declaration you may still take part in the debate and vote on the matter unless 
your personal interest is also a “prejudicial” interest. 
 
“Prejudicial” interests … 
A prejudicial interest is one which a member of the public knowing the relevant facts would think 
so significant as to be likely to affect your judgment of the public interest.  
 
What to do if your interest is prejudicial … 
If you have a prejudicial interest in any matter under consideration, you may remain in the room 
but only for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving evidence 
relating to the matter under consideration, provided that the public are also allowed to attend the 
meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory right or otherwise. 
 
Exceptions … 
There are a few circumstances where you may regard yourself as not having a prejudicial 
interest or may participate even though you may have one.  These, together with other rules 
about participation in the case of a prejudicial interest, are set out in paragraphs 10 – 12 of the 
Code. 
 
Seeking Advice … 
It is your responsibility to decide whether any of these provisions apply to you in particular 
circumstances, but you may wish to seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer before the meeting. 
 

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of 
these papers or special access facilities) please contact the officer 
named on the front page, but please give as much notice as possible 
before the meeting. 



 

 

AGENDA 
 

1. Apologies for Absence  
 

2. Declarations of Interest  
 

 - guidance note opposite  
 

3. Questions from County Councillors  
 

 Any county councillor may, by giving notice to the Proper Officer by 9 am two working 
days before the meeting, ask a question on any matter in respect of the Cabinet’s 
delegated powers. 
 
The number of questions which may be asked by any councillor at any one meeting is 
limited to two (or one question with notice and a supplementary question at the 
meeting) and the time for questions will be limited to 30 minutes in total. As with 
questions at Council, any questions which remain unanswered at the end of this item 
will receive a written response. 
 
Questions submitted prior to the agenda being despatched are shown below and will be 
the subject of a response from the appropriate Cabinet Member or such other councillor 
or officer as is determined by the Cabinet Member, and shall not be the subject of 
further debate at this meeting. Questions received after the despatch of the agenda, but 
before the deadline, will be shown on the Schedule of Addenda circulated at the 
meeting, together with any written response which is available at that time.  
 

4. Petitions and Public Address  
 

5. Exempt Clause  
 

 It is RECOMMENDED that the public be excluded for the duration of item 6E since 
it is likely that if they were present during that item there would be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government 
Act 1972 (as amended) and specified below in relation to that item and since it is 
considered that, in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information on the grounds set out in that item. 
 
NOTE: The main report relating to item 6E does not itself contain exempt information 
and is thus available to the public. The exempt information is contained either in an 
Annex which has been circulated only to members and officers entitled to receive it, or 
will be reported orally at the meeting. 
 
MEMBERS AND OFFICERS ARE REMINDED THAT THE EXEMPT FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION RELATING TO SUBSIDY AGREEMENTS REPORTED AT THE 
MEETING (WHETHER IN WRITING OR ORALLY) MUST NOT BE DIVULGED TO 
ANY THIRD PARTY. 



- 2 - 
 

 

  
 

6. Approval of Contract Award Decision for Property & Facilities 
Management Procurement of External Services Project (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 Cabinet Member: Finance & Property 
Forward Plan Ref: 2011/031 
Contact: Roger Dyson, Project Manager/Romina Peddis, Project Coordinator Tel: 
(01865) 815665/(01865) 815714 
 
Report by Director of Environment & Economy and Assistant Chief executive and Chief 
Finance Officer (CA6E). 
 
The information in this report is exempt in that it falls within the following prescribed 
category: 
 
Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding that information) 
 
 

  
 

 
 



Division(s):  All 
 
 

CABINET– 23 MARCH 2012 
 

PROPERTY & FACILITIES, PROCUREMENT OF SERVICE 
PROVIDER 

 

Report by the Director for Environment & Economy and Assistant 
Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer 

 

Introduction 
 
1. This report invites the Cabinet to consider recommendations for the 

appointment of Preferred Bidder and award of the contract for the provision of 
property and facilities management works and services including construction, 
design, estates and facilities management services.  

 

History and Context 
 

2. On 6 October 2010 the County Council Management Team approved the 
Property & Facilities’ Business Case: Oxfordshire Property Driving Change. 
The business case set out the fundamental link between strategic asset 
planning and achieving the Council’s key priorities such as Place Shaping and 
Localities Working. A revised, integrated operating model and procurement 
strategy will allow the Council to develop capability in and focus on the 
strategic function, allowing others to take responsibility for project delivery and 
operational activities. Co-location and integration with the private sector with 
the Council taking a lead role in this joined up approach to asset use will 
deliver direct efficiencies and improved service outcomes.  

 
3. The business case identified an operating model with a lean client and a 

substantial outsourced supply chain. Its proposals were incorporated into the 
Environment & Economy budget proposals which Cabinet recommended to 
Council in February 2011. A copy of Oxfordshire Property Driving Change is 
included in the background papers for this report. 

 
4. A savings target of £550k, based on the forecast efficiency savings made by 

adopting this approach has been included in the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Plan (MTFP). 

 
5. In December 2010 a Project Initiation Document (PID) and Project Board, 

including Councillor Couchman (Cabinet Member for Finance & Property), 
Huw Jones (Director for Environment & Economy), Sue Scane (Assistant 
Chief Executive & Chief Finance Officer) and Martin Tugwell (Deputy Director 
Growth & Infrastructure) with representatives from Procurement, Human 
Resources, Legal Services and Property & Facilities representatives, was set 
up. The board met for the first time on 15 December 2010. A copy of the PID 
is included in the background papers to this report.  

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



CA6E 
 

 
6. An OJEU Contract Notice was issued on the 31 January 2011 followed by a 

Competitive Dialogue procurement process. Cabinet received a progress 
report on 21 June 2011 and agreed the continuation of the procurement. On 6 
February 2012 Cabinet agreed to the inclusion of both Food with Thought and 
Quest Cleaning & Facilities Services in the final tender. 

 

Exempt Information 
 
7. Annex 1 to be circulated separately should be considered in exempt session 

because its discussion in public might lead to the disclosure to members of the 
public present of information relating to the financial and business affairs of 
any particular person (including the authority holding that information) as a 
result of discussions between Oxfordshire County Council and/or other local 
authorities and organisations. 

 
8. The tender prices reported separately in Annex 1 must be treated as strictly 

confidential since they relate to the financial and business affairs of the 
operators.  All prices must be treated as strictly confidential until such time as 
the Decision Meeting decides whether or not to provide financial support for 
the service.  Revealing operators’ prices before then would prejudice the 
Council’s position if tenders or propositions had to be sought again for the 
service.  Prices must remain confidential until after Contract Award; planned 
for 13 April 2012.  

 

Contract Services 
 

9. The services included within this contract are: 
 

Service Stream Description 

SS0 Contract Management and Programme Office 

SS1 Design & Construction of Works over £2k 

SS2 Professional Services (including Architecture, 
Engineering, Project Management, Quantity Surveying) 

SS3 Strategic Asset Management and Estates Management 
(including acquisitions and disposals, lease renewals, 
asset valuations, ratings advice) 

SS4 a) Helpdesk and Computer Aided Facilities Management 

b) Soft Facilities Management Services (cleaning, site 
health & safety and wellbeing compliance, security, 
civic catering, pest control and grounds maintenance) 

c) Hard Facilities Management Services (cyclical 
servicing and maintenance, repairs & maintenance 
under £2k, building management systems and 
signage) 

SS5 Schools (QCS & FwT) 

Page 2



CA6E 
 

 

 
Procurement and Tender Evaluation 

 
10. The competitive dialogue process commenced in February 2011 with a 

Bidders’ Day. 80 people attended representing 38 companies. The Outline 
Solutions stage then followed throughout April and May 2011 with five 
Participants selected from pre-qualification, who were each involved in 12 
hours of dialogue meetings. 

 
11. During the period July 2011 to January 2012 the three Participants selected 

for the Detailed Solutions stage were each involved in 8 days of technical 
quality dialogue, 41/2 days of legal dialogue and 31/2 days of finance dialogue, 
as well as telephone conferences. During this stage, Participants visited a 
number of OCC buildings, and in January 2012 OCC officers visited a number 
of sites nominated by each Participant where they are delivering similar 
services, to observe the quality of their work and to discuss their performance 
with their clients. The visits were used to verify business management 
systems referred to in their submissions.  

 
12. The three Participants’ Detailed Solutions submissions were evaluated, and 

Final Tender documents were issued on 10 February 2011; these included the 
Project Agreement, associated schedules, the Payment & Performance 
Mechanism, a scope of service for each Service Stream, pricing schedules for 
each Service Stream and data on all OCC buildings and property. The 
Participants’ Final Tenders were received on 20 February 2012. 

 
13. Tender evaluation was divided into two criteria: Technical Quality and 

Commercial (Legal and Financial) each weighted 50%. The Final Tender 
evaluation and moderation was concluded on 5 March 2012.   
 
Corporate Policies and Priorities 
  

14. From the outset of the process to review how property services should be 
delivered, the Council’s strategic objectives, principles and values have 
shaped development of the proposed operating model and procurement 
strategy and then how the competitive dialogue was undertaken. The 
Business Case, Oxfordshire Property Driving Change, considered how 
property should be dealt with to ensure that it could be used to help achieve 
the council’s objectives, as well as provide the property needed to develop 
services. 
 
Some examples of how the recommended solution helps to achieve the 
Council’s Strategic Objectives are: 
 
Word Class Economy: 

 
• A commitment to 1 apprentice for every £1m contract expenditure 
• Proposals to use local contractors and suppliers 
• Commitments to training for staff 

Page 3



CA6E 
 

 
Healthy and Thriving Communities 

 
• A delivery model that has a focus and allocates resource to delivering 

services in localities and working with partners and communities to 
achiever broader objectives 

 
Environment & Climate Change 

 
• Reduction in energy consumption to reduce costs and tax liabilities 

highlighted as a priority from the outset, with targets set and 
commitments given in the proposed solutions. 

 
Efficient Public Services 

 
• The proposed solution will achieve the MTFP Property Savings in year 

1 and exceed them in future years 
• The proposed way of working cuts out duplication and will improve 

customer service 
 
Sustainability Implications 

 
15. Requirements to reduce the Council's environmental footprint and resource 

consumption (including energy, water and waste) are included in Service 
Stream 3 Strategic Asset Management and Estates Management.  The 
council expects these requirements to be embedded throughout the contract, 
and have been considered throughout the procurement process.   

 
 

Staff and Financial Implications 
 
16. The three participants submitted prices in accordance with the contract. All 

prices have been checked to ensure arithmetical accuracy. A number of 
clarifications have been sought on the bidder’s pricing strategy to ensure the 
bids are directly comparable and sustainable. 

 
17. There is a clear margin between each participant in the value of their bids, 

with one Participant offering overall good value for money on the capital 
programme where sample costed schemes were on average 19% cheaper 
than that spent by the council. The revenue related cost of the bid is affordable 
meeting the current MTFP savings target, with continual annual savings for 
the medium term. 
 

18. An assessment on contract resilience and the cost impact of a reduced capital 
programme, found that Participant A over the medium term on both revenue 
and capital budget remain affordable, with any revenue pressure offset by the 
guaranteed minimum savings realised through the contract.  Participant C 
because of the high overhead cost per project would remain unaffordable over 
the medium term.  In summary contract A is the most resilient contract out of 
all Participant cost submissions. 

Page 4



CA6E 
 

 
19. TUPE will apply to the transfer of OCC staff associated with the transfer of 

service arising as a result of the contract award decision made by Cabinet.  
 

20. Additionally, there are staff at both Mouchel and the Measured Term 
Contractors who are eligible to TUPE across to the new Service Provider. 
Unison has been actively involved throughout the process and in the dialogue 
meetings.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
21. The Cabinet is RECOMMENDED to award the contract for property and 

facilities management works and services to Participant A and authorise; 
 

(a) the Director for Environment and Economy after discussion with 
the Cabinet Member for Finance and Property,  to approve minor 
amendments to the form of contract, and any subsidiary or related 
documents, prior to its execution which do not modify substantial 
aspects of the contract or the commercial agreement with 
Participant A as outlined in the report; and 

 
(b) the Director for Environment and Economy to sign any subsidiary 

or related documents arising from the contract. 
 
 
HUW JONES 
DIRECTOR OF ENVIRONMENT & ECONOMY  
 
SUE SCANE 
ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND CHIEF FINANCE OFFICER 
 
March 2012 
 
 
Background Papers:  The following papers are available in the Members’ Resource 
Centre 
1. Business Case: Oxfordshire Property Driving Change 
2. Project Initiation Document (PID) 
3. Scopes of Service for Contract 
4. Audit Reports 
5. Gateway Reports 
6. Risk Register 
7. Project Agreement and Schedules 
8. Payment and Performance Mechanism (PPM) 
9. Legal Assessment regarding Final Tender 
10. Previous Cabinet papers inc: 
a. Cabinet Report June 2011 – Project Endorsement 
b. Cabinet Report October 2011 – Inclusion of FWT/QCS in scope of contract 
c. Cabinet Report February 2012 – Inclusion of FWT/QCS in contract 
 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Approval of Contract Award Decision for Property & Facilities Management Procurement of External Services Project

